IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 02-39

CHARLES GLOBE,

Appellant,

v.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND FOR COLUMBIA COUNTY, STATE OF FLORIDA

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

STEVEN L. SELIGER Florida Bar No. 244597 GARCIA & SELIGER 16 North Adams Street Quincy, FL 32351 (850) 875-4668

COUNSEL FOR APPELLANT

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This proceeding involves the appeal of Mr. Globe's conviction for first-degree murder and sentence of death. The record on appeal will be referred to as "R[volume number]. [page

REQUEST FOR ORAL ARGUMENT

Mr. Globe has been sentenced to death. A full opportunity to air the issues through oral argument would be more than appropriate in this case, given the seriousness of the claims involved and the stakes at issue. Mr. Globe, through counsel, accordingly urges that the Court permit oral argument.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PRELIMINARY ST	ΓATEMENT			• • • • •	
REQUEST FOR OF	RAL ARGUMENT				
TABLE OF CONTI iii-iv	ENTS			• • • •	
TABLE OF AUTHOV-X	ORITIES				
NATURE OF THE1	CASE	• • • • • • • • • • •			
STATEMENT OF 7	ГНЕ CASE				
STATEMENT OF 3.4-15	ГНЕ FACTS				
SUMMARY OF TH 16-19	IE ARGUMENT				
STANDARD OF R	EVIEW		· • • • • • • • •		
ARGUMENTS					
FIRST- DEATI	LOBE WAS CONVIC DEGREE MURDER . H ON THE ABSIS OF NSTITUTIONALLY (AND SENTEN ILLEGALLY	ICED TO AND		.21-

	II.	THE ADMISSION OF CODEFENDANT BUSBY'S	
		STATEMENTS VIOLATED MR. GLOBE'S CONFRON-	
		TATION RIGHTS AND THE FIFTH, SIXTH AND	
		EIGHTH AMENDMENTS	
.55-58	8		
	III.	MR. GLOBE'S JURY WAS MISLED BY COMMENTS	
		AND PENALTY PHASE INSTRUCTIONS WHICH	
		VIOLATED CALDWELL V. MISSISSIPPI, 472 U.S. 320	
		(1985), AND RING V. ARIZONA, 122 S.CT. 2428 (2002) 59)_
62			
	IV.	FLORIDA'S CAPITAL SENTENCING PROCEDURE	
		DEPRIVED MR. GLOBE OF HIS SIXTH AMENDMENT	
		RIGHTS TO NOTICE AND TO A JURY TRIAL AND OF	
	_	HIS RIGHT TO DUE PROCESS	
.63-7	7		
	V.	THE TRIAL COURT'S SENTENCING ORDER VIOLATES	
		THE EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS	3-
	82		
	VI.	THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN GIVING THE	
	V 1.	PRINCIPAL INSTRUCTION	
	.83-8		
	VII.	THE DEATH SENTENCE IMPOSED IN THIS CASE	
		IS DISPROPORTIONATE	
.86-89	9		
	VIII.	THE TRIAL COURT ERRED BOTH LEGALLY AND	
		FACTUALLY IN ITS EVALUATION OF	
		MITIGATING FACTORS BY APPLYING IMPROPER	
		LEGAL STANDARDS AND BY FAILING TO	
		EXPLAIN ITS WEIGHING PROCESS	90

CONCLUSION
CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

<u>Page</u>
Agan v. State, 445 So. 2d 326, 328 (Fla. 1983)
Allen v. United States, 2002 U.S. LEXIS 4893 (June 28, 2002) 71, 72
Almendarez-Torres v. United States, 523 U.S. 224 (1998)
Anderson v. State, 420 So. 2d 574, 576 (Fla. 1982)
Apprendi v. New Jersey, 530 U.S. 466 (2000) 60, 61, 63, 64, 71
Arizona v. Fulminante, 499 U.S. 279, 296 (1991)
Art. I, § 17. Fla. Const
Bertolotti v. State, 476 So.2d 130 (Fla. 1985)
Bottoson v. Moore, So.2d, 2002 WL 31386790 (Fla. 2002)61, 62, 74-77
Brown v. Illinois, 422 U.S. 590, 603-04 (1975)
Brumbley v. State, 453 So.2d 381, 385 (Fla. 1984)
Bruton v. United States, 391 U.S. 123 (1968) (R25. 509) 55, 56, 57
Buford v. State, 570 So. 2d 923, 925 (Fla. 1990)
Caldwell v. Mississippi, 472 U.S. 320 (1985) 17, 59, 60, 61, 62, 69, 76
Campbell v. State, 571 So. 2d 415 (Fla. 1990)
Cannady v. State, 427 So. 2d 723 (Fla. 1983)
Carter v. State. 560 So. 2d 1166 (Fla. 1990)

Chapman v. California, 386 U.S. 18 (1967)
Chavez v. State, 2002 WL 1065901 at 15 (Fla. 2002)
Cheshire v. State, 568 So. 2d 908 (Fla. 1990)(citing Lockett) 81, 92
Cochran v. State, 547 So.2d 928 (Fla. 1989)
Colorado v. Connelly, 479 U.S. 157, 167-68 (1986)
Combs v. State, 525 So. 2d 853, 859 (Fla. 1988)(Shaw, J., concurring) 66
Coney v. State, 653 So. 2d 1009, 1011 (Fla. 1995)
Cruz v. New York, 481 U.S. 220 (1987)
Deangelo v. State, 616 So. 2d 440, 443 (Fla. 1993)
DeJonge v. Oregon, 299 U.S. 353 (1937)
Eddings v. Oklahoma, 455 U.S. 104, 113-14 (1982)
Edwards v. Arizona, 451 U.S. 477, 482 (1981)
Elledge v. State, 346 So. 2d 998, 1003 (Fla. 1977)
Fare v. Michael C., 442 U.S. 707, 725 (1979)
Ferrell v. State, 653 So. 2d 367, 371 (Fla. 1995)
Fla.Stat. § 775.082
Fla.Stat. § 921.141(7)(b), F.S.A
Flanning v. State, 597 So. 2d 864, 867 (Fla. 3d DCA 1992), Jones v. State, 92 So.2d 261 (Fla. 1956)

Gore v. State, 599 So. 2d 978, 981 n.5 (Fla. 1992)
Grossman v. State, 525 So. 2d 833, 840 (Fla. 1988)
Hansbrough v. State, 509 So. 2d 1081, 1086 (Fla. 1987)
Hitchcock v. Dugger, 481 U.S. 393, 394 (1987)
Hudson v. State, 708 So. 2d 256, 259-60 (Fla. 1998)
In re Winship, 397 U.S. 358 (1970)
Jones v. State, 569 So. 2d 1234, 1238 (Fla. 1990)
Jones v. United States, 526 U.S. 227 (1999)
Keen v. State, 504 So. 2d 396, 400 (Fla. 1987)
King v. Moore, So.2d, 2002 WL 313386234 (Fla. 2002) 73, 74, 77
Kipp v. State, 668 So. 2d 214, 216 (Fla. 2d DCA 1996)
Kramer v. State, 619 So. 2d 274, 277 (Fla. 1993)
Lee v. Illinois, 476 U.S. 530, 543 (1986)
Lockett v. Ohio, 438 U.S. 586 (1978)
Lusk v. State, 446 So. 2d 1038, 1042 (Fla. 1984)
Mansfield v. State, 758 So.2d 636, 647 (Fla. 2000)
Marshall v. State, 604 So. 2d 799, 802 (Fla. 1992)
Maynard v. Cartwright, 108 S. Ct. 1853, 1858 (1988)

McCampbell v. State, 421 So. 2d 1072 (Fla. 1982)
Merck v. State, 763 So. 2d 295, 298 (Fla. 2000)
Michigan v. Mosley, 423 U.S. 96, 104 (1975)
Miller v. State, 373 So. 2d 882 (Fla. 1979)
Miranda v. Arizona, 384 U.S. 436 (1966)
Moran v. Burbine, 475 U.S. 412, 421 (1986), quoting Miranda, 384 U.S. at 444
Morton v. State, 789 So. 2d 324, 333 (Fla. 2001)
Mullaney v. Wilbur, 421 U.S. 684, 698 (1975)
Nibert v. State, 574 So. 2d 1059, 1062 (Fla. 1990)
Nye and Nissen v. United States, 336 U.S. 613 (1949)
Ohio v. Roberts, 448 U.S. 56, 66 (1980)
Oregon v. Elstad, 470 U.S. 298 (1985)
Parker v. Dugger, 498 U.S. 308 (1991)
Penry v. Lynaugh, 492 U.S. 302 (1989)
Peoples v. State, 612 So. 2d 555, 556 (Fla. 1992), quoting Traylor v. State, 596 So. 2d 957, 970 (Fla. 1992)
Pope v. State, 441 So.2d 1073 (Fla. 1983)
Porter v. State, 564 So. 2d 1060, 1064 (Fla. 1990)
Proffitt v. Florida, 428 U.S. 242, 258, 96 S.Ct. 2960, 49 L.Ed.2d 913 (1976) 79

Quince v. State, 414 So.2d 185 (Fla. 1982)	
Ramirez v. State, 739 So. 2d 568, 575 (Fla. 1999)	
Ray v. State, 755 So. 2d 604, 611 (Fla. 2000)	
Rhode Island v. Innis, 446 U.S. 291 (1980)	
Ring v. Arizona, 122 S. Ct. 2428 (2002) 17, 18, 59, 60, 62-65, 68, 71, 74-77	
Robinson v. State, 520 So.2d 1, 6 (Fla. 1988)	
Rogers v. State, 511 So. 2d 526, 534 (Fla. 1987)	
Rule 3.130, Fla. R. Crim, P	
Rule 9.030(a)(1)(A)(i), Fl. R. App. P	
Section 921.141, Fla. Stat	
Skipper v. South Carolina, 476 U.S. 1, 2 (1986)	
Sliney v. State, 699 So. 2d 662, 672 (Fla. 1997) (citing Terry, 668 So. 2d at 965)	
State v. DiGuilio, 491 So. 2d 1129, 1135 (Fla. 1986)	
State v. Dixon, 283 So. 2d 1 (Fla. 1973)	
State v. Dixon, 283 So. 2d 1, 10 (Fla. 1973)	
State v. Dixon, 283 So. 2d 1, 7 (Fla. 1973)	
State v. Dixon, 283 So. 2d 1, 8 (Fla. 1973)	
State v. Dye, 346 So. 2d 538, 541 (Fla. 1977)	

State v. Gray, 435 So. 2d 816, 818 (Fla. 1983)
State v. Overfelt, 457 So. 2d 1385, 1387 (Fla. 1984) 67
State v. Perkins, 760 So. 2d 85, 88 (Fla. 2000), quoting Wong Sun v. United States, 371 U.S. at 487-88
Sullivan v. Louisiana, 508 U.S. 275 (1993)
Terry v. State, 668 So. 2d. 954, 965 (Fla.1996)
Thompson v. State, 648 So. 2d 692, 698 (Fla. 1994) 67
Thornhill v. Alabama, 310 U.S. 88 (1940)
Tillman v. State, 591 So. 2d 167 (Fla. 1991)
Trawick v. State, 473 So. 2d 1235 (Fla. 1985), cert. denied, 476 U.S. 1143 (1986)
United States v. Allen, 247 F.3d 741 (8th Cir. 2001)
Walker v. State, 707 So. 2d 300, 319 (Fla. 1997)
Walton v. Arizona, 497 U.S. 639 (1990)
Williamson v. State, 511 So. 2d 289, 291 (Fla. 1987)
Wong Sun v. United States, 371 U.S. 471 (1963)
Woodson v. North Carolina, 428 U.S. 280 (1976)
Yates v. Evatt, 111 S. Ct. 1884 (1991)

(1) Nature of the case.

This is a direct appeal from a circuit court imposition of the death sentence after Mr. Globe was convicted of the first degree murder of Elton Ard. This Court has jurisdiction. Rule 9.030(a)(1)(A)(i), Fl. R. App. P.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

(2) <u>Course of proceedings and deposition in the lower tribunal.</u>

Mr. Globe was charged by indictment with first-degree murder in the Third Judicial Circuit, Columbia County, Florida (R1. 1). Mr. Globe pled not guilty and requested a jury trial.

Trial began on September 10, 2001. On September 11, 2001, the jury found Mr. Globe guilty of premeditated first-degree murder (R11. 2084). On September 14, 2001, after a penalty phase, the jury recommended a death sentence by a vote of 9 to 3 (R11. 2159).

The defense and prosecution submitted sentencing memoranda (R12. 2375-2394; R12. 2395-R13. 2416). The court held a sentencing hearing on September 24, 2001 (R30). On October 11, 2001, the court entered an order sentencing Mr. Globe to death (R13. 2424-2436). The court found four aggravating circumstances: (1) prior conviction of a felony and under sentence of imprisonment; (2) prior conviction of a felony involving the use or threat of violence; (3) heinous, atrocious or cruel; and (4) cold, calculated and premeditated (R13. 2424-2428). The court found no statutory mitigating circumstances and eleven nonstatutory mitigating circumstances, giving those circumstances "little" or "slight" weight (R13. 2429-33).

Mr. Globe timely filed a notice of appeal (R13. 2440). This appeal follows.

(3) STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

At about 9:00 a.m. on July 3, 2000, Charles Globe and Andrew Busby were discovered in cell 212 of Quad Four of F-dorm in Columbia Correctional Institution

with Elton Ard, who appeared to be dead (R26. 574-76). Although the cell was supposed to be unlocked at that time of day, the cell door was locked (R26. 574-75). Only Busby and Ard were supposed to be in the cell (R26. 575).

Mr. Globe and Busby were sitting in the cell smoking cigarettes (R26. 575). Ard had a cigarette in his mouth (R26. 576). Mr. Globe and Busby were removed from the cell (R26. 576). Mr. Ard had no vital signs (R26. 587).

The medical examiner determined that Mr. Ard had nine areas of injury on his body, including abrasions and lacerations on his forehead, a swollen and discolored right eye, abrasions on his chin and jaw, and a long prominent abrasion on the front and sides of his neck (R26. 552-53). The bruises and abrasions occurred before Mr. Ard's death (R26. 567). A cord or piece of rope was tied around his left wrist (R26. 554). The cause of Mr. Ard's death was strangulation (R26. 555). The medical examiner characterized the long abrasion on Mr. Ard's neck as a "ligature impression" (R26. 557). There was one linear injury on Mr. Ard's neck which "is explained by one ligature being placed" (R26. 564-65).

Smaller abrasions in that area could have been caused by the perpetrator's fingernails or by Mr. Ard trying to remove the ligature (R26. 559). Mr. Ard's injuries were consistent with a scuffle or fight, and that fight occurred before Mr. Ard was strangled (R26. 569-70).

A crime laboratory analyst from the Florida Department of Law Enforcement (FDLE) collected evidence from cell 212 (R26. 591-93). A note taped to the cell's window said "Call F.D.L.E." (R26. 595). A note on the wall inside the cell said "Don't forget to look on the door" and had a smiley face drawn on it (R26. 597). Written on the inside of the cell door was "Remember Andy and K.D., 7-3-2000" (R26. 598). To the left of "Andy" and to the right of "K.D.," were red stains which appeared to be fingerprint impressions in blood (R26. 598). "Andrew" was written on the left inside door jamb, and "K.D." was written on the right inside door jamb (R26. 599). Around the door jamb and on the back of the toilet were other stains (R26. 599-600). Mr. Ard had a cigarette lighter in his left hand, a piece of torn sheet around his wrist and a cigarette in his mouth (R26. 602). An eyeglass wing was found behind the toilet (R26. 611). Busby had no apparent injuries to his

¹"K.D." is Mr. Globe.

²A forensic document examiner testified that Mr. Globe wrote "call F.D.L.E" and "remember Andy and K.D., 7-3-2000" (R27. 744, 746).

face or hands (R26. 612). Mr. Globe had abrasions below his sideburn, on his lip and on his right thumb (R26. 614-15).

On July 3, 2000, FDLE agent Gootee met with Mr. Globe, advised him of his rights and asked Mr. Globe if he wanted to talk (R25. 474). Mr. Globe replied, "[n]ot at this time" and said nothing else (Id.). Agent Gootee terminated the interview and passed this information on to FDLE agent Ugliano, who was the case agent (R25. 474-75).

Agent Ugliano testified that agent Gootee had attempted to interview Mr. Globe on July 3, 2000, and had told agent Ugliano what had occurred during that interview (R25. 476). About six hours later, agent Ugliano approached Mr. Globe about making a statement (R25. 476-77; R26. 698). Ugliano and Mr. Globe were standing outside the prison inspector's office while Andrew Busby was inside the office (R25. 477). Ugliano asked Mr. Globe, "You are willing to make a statement?" and Mr. Globe said, "Yeah, if I can be with Andy [Busby]" (Id.). Both Mr. Globe and Busby then participated in an inculpatory taped statement (R25. 478). The tape was played for the jury (R26. 629-55).

Agent Ugliano went to talk to Mr. Globe again on July 7, 2000, because Ugliano had "some questions" (R25. 478). Ugliano advised Mr. Globe of his rights

and recorded an interview (<u>Id</u>.).³ The tape was played for the jury (R26. 659-68).

Mr. Globe was shackled and confined at about 9:00 a.m. on July 3 at Columbia Correctional Institution (R25. 491). After his statement that evening, Mr. Globe was moved to Florida State Prison, where confinement is more restrictive than confinement at Columbia (R25. 495). This move was a result of the incidents which occurred on July 3 (R25. 496). Between July 3 and July 7, there was no attempt to bring Mr. Globe before a judge (R25. 496). Counsel for Mr. Globe was appointed on September 7, 2000, and entered an appearance on September 8 (R1. 4, 6).

Agent Ugliano testified that on September 7, 2000, the date of Mr. Globe's arraignment, he and Mr. Globe were sitting outside the judge's office (R26. 694). Mr. Globe said: "It's stupid to have to go through all this bullshit. I know I am going to get the needle for killing him. I just don't give a shit. That's just the way it is. I just don't give a shit. You know what I am saying?" (R26. 694-95). Ugliano testified he said he could not talk to Mr. Globe because he had an attorney, and Mr. Globe replied, "Shit. We have already confessed to killing the dude. What's it matter?" (R26. 695).

³A more detailed account of how Mr. Globe's statements were obtained and the content of the statements is contained in Argument I.

Mr. Globe sent letters to three FDLE agents. Agent Schenck received a letter dated September 28, 2000 (R26. 670); agent Ugliano received a letter postmarked September 27, 2000 (R26. 690); agent Flournoy received a letter postmarked September 28, 2000 (R26. 692). A latent print examiner testified that Mr. Globe's fingerprints were on the three letters (R27. 722). A forensic document examiner testified that Mr. Globe wrote the letters (R27. 746). All three letters were read to the jury (R27. 748-61).

At the penalty phase, the State presented evidence that Mr. Globe was in prison for two counts of sexual battery, kidnapping and robbery for which he had received three life sentences and one 30-year sentence (R29, 851, 853). The State also presented evidence that Mr. Globe was convicted of robbery in Illinois in 1983 (R29, 852).

In the defense case, Perkins testified by deposition that he was in prison with Mr. Globe, who was homosexual and "mostly a quiet guy" (R29. 855). Mr. Globe was the dominant person in the relationship with Busby and Mr. Globe was "real possessive" of Busby (R29. 856). Mr. Globe would get upset if other inmates talked to Busby (R29. 856-57). Mr. Globe was a decent friend, sharing his coffee and cigarettes with Perkins (R29. 859). Perkins never saw Mr. Globe treat other

⁴The contents of the letters are detailed in Argument I.

inmates badly (R29, 859).

William Wright, a volunteer prison minister who testified by videotape, met Mr. Globe in October 2000 and had seen him about 24 times (R29, 864). Mr. Globe had changed in that time period (R29. 865). When they first met, Mr. Globe told Wright that he should feel remorse about killing Ard, but was bothered because he did not feel anything (R29. 865). However, that changed in May, when Mr. Globe said "he did feel remorse. He felt sorry for [Mr. Ard's] family because they wouldn't be able to see him any more" (R29. 865). Mr. Globe had "[j]ust completely turned around from his stance last year at this time" (R29. 865). Last fall, Mr. Globe started drawing a Christian cartoon named Charlie's World which included scripture verses and giving them to people to encourage them (R29. 865-66). Recently, Mr. Globe had done a cartoon strip for a friend of Wright's who had breast cancer, and it definitely lifted her spirits (R29. 866). Mr. Globe looked to Wright for help (R29. 866).

Ruth Globe, Mr. Globe's mother, testified that she moved from Florida to Delaware twelve years earlier (R29. 868). Mr. Globe's father died in 1989 (R29. 870). At that time, Ruth Globe's other children abandoned her, but Mr. Globe stayed in contact with her (R29. 870-71). Ruth Globe had not seen Mr. Globe for about 15 years (R29. 871). She did not tell Mr. Globe when she moved to

Delaware (R29. 871). Before that, she and Mr. Globe were corresponding (R29. 871).

Mr. Globe was no problem as a child (R29. 872). The family's financial circumstances were not very good (R29. 872). Mr. Globe got a job when he was high school age (R29. 873). He left home when he was 15 or 16 after he and his father and mother had an argument (R29. 873). His father did not try to stop him from leaving, but told him to go if he wanted to (R29. 873). Eventually, Mr. Globe came home, but his father told Ruth Globe to call the police (R29. 874). When Mr. Globe was 10, 12 or 14, his father often told him he was "dumb and stupid. He would never amount to anything" (R29. 874-75).

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