### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CHARLES GLOBE,	
Appellant,	
vs.	Case No. SC 02-39
STATE OF FLORIDA,	
Appellee.	
	/

# ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND FOR COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

### **ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE**

CHARLES J. CRIST, JR. ATTORNEY GENERAL

### CASSANDRA K. DOLGIN

Assistant Attorney General Certified Out-Of-State Bar Member

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL The Capitol Tallahassee, FL 32399-1050 (850) 414-3300 Ext 4583 FAX (850) 487-0997

**COUNSEL FOR APPELLEE** 

#

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

MR. DEKLE: Well –

THE COURT: I am not going to say it, Mr. Dekle.

MR. PAYNE: You are denying that request?

THE COURT: Both of the motions to say it earlier and say it then. We will follow the law as it currently exists. Any other motions by the defendant?

MR. PAYNE: Not at this time.

\* \* \* \* \*

(R. XXIX-876-878). Following closing arguments by the parties, the trial court instructed the jury as mandated by the Florida Standard Jury Instructions (R. XXIX-901-908). When asked if either party had "any additions or corrections to the instructions as given by the court," Appellant relied upon his previous objections (R. XXIX-908-909).

Regarding his Sixth Amendment claim, Appellant fails to acknowledge that he did not present his contention to the trial court that "[a] 'recommendation' made by persons who believe they are only making a 'recommendation' is not a 'verdict' under the Sixth Amendment." App.Br. at 62. And while Globe cites Ring v. Arizona, 536 U.S. 584 (2002) in support of this new argument, Ring involved the application of Apprendi v. New Jersey, 530 U.S. 466 (2000). The United States Supreme Court decided Apprendi on June 26, 2000; Globe's trial did not begin until September, 2001 (R. XXII-45). Having failed to raise his Sixth Amendment claim in a timely manner, it is now barred and the Court should deny relief on that basis. See McGregor v. State, 789 So.2d 976, 977 (Fla. 2001) (Apprendi claim procedurally barred for failure

to raise in trial court); <u>Barnes v. State</u>, 794 So.2d 590, 591 (Fla. 2001) (<u>Apprendi</u> error not preserved for appellate review).

Moreover, Appellant's attempt to create a constitutional right beyond that enumerated in Ring is unavailing, as the only issue before the United States Supreme Court in Ring was "whether that aggravating factor may be found by the judge, as Arizona law specifies, or whether the Sixth Amendment's jury trial guarantee, [1] made applicable to the States by the Fourteenth Amendment, requires that the aggravating factor determination be entrusted to the jury. Ring, 122 S.Ct. at 2437 (internal footnotes omitted). Ring did not overrule United States Supreme Court precedent holding that jury sentencing is not constitutionally required. See Proffitt v. Florida, 428 U.S. 242, 252 (1976). Rather, Ring simply held that "capital defendants . . . are entitled to a jury determination of any fact on which the legislature conditions an increase in their maximum punishment," id., 122 S.Ct. at 2432; see also id. at 2437 n.4 ("Ring's claim is tightly delineated: He contends only that the Sixth Amendment required jury findings on the aggravating circumstances asserted against him.").

Further, any contention that the jury did not find an aggravating circumstance before recommending that death be imposed ignores the language and operation of Florida's penalty phase jury instructions -- e.g., "If you find the aggravating circumstances do not justify the death penalty, your advisory sentence should be one

of life imprisonment without the possibility of parole. Should you find sufficient aggravating circumstances do exist, it will then be your duty to determine whether mitigating circumstances exist that outweigh the aggravating circumstances." (R. XXIX-904). In other words, before a Florida jury can find that the aggravating circumstances are outweighed by the mitigating circumstances, the jury must have found that there existed at least one aggravating circumstance and that it justified the death penalty. Accord Bottoson v. Moore, 833 So.2d 693, 702 (Fla. 2002) (Quince, J., specially concurring). A jury is presumed to following the Court's instructions. Zafiro v. United States, 506 U.S. 534, 540-541 (1993).

Regarding Appellant's preserved claim, this Court has repeatedly held that the Florida Standard Jury Instructions are in compliance with Caldwell. See, e.g., Floyd v. State, \_\_\_ So.2d \_\_\_, 27 Fla. L. Weekly S697, S703 (Fla. 2002) (citing cases); Brown v. State, 721 So.2d 274, 283 (Fla. 1998) (citing cases), cert. denied, 526 U.S. 1102 (1999); Burns v. State, 699 So.2d 646, 654 (Fla. 1997) (citing cases), cert. denied, 522 U.S. 1121 (1998). "To establish a Caldwell violation, a defendant necessarily must show that the remarks to the jury improperly described the role assigned to the jury under local law." Dugger v. Adams, 489 U.S. 401, 407 (1989). Here, as this Court has held, and notwithstanding Globe's conclusory assertion to the contrary, the instructions properly informed the jury of its role under Florida law, and

thus any claim of a <u>Caldwell</u> violation is without merit. <u>See Romano v. Oklahoma</u>, 512 U.S. 1, 9 (1994) ("The infirmity identified in <u>Caldwell</u> is simply absent in this case: Here, the jury was not affirmatively misled regarding its role in the sentencing process."). Moreover, in properly instructing the jury regarding its advisory role, at no time was the jury's sense of responsibility diminished in respect to its role in respect to its consideration of the aggravating circumstances. To the contrary, the jury was instructed that its advisory sentence "must be based on" whether it found certain aggravating circumstances, any mitigating circumstances, and whether the aggravators outweighed the mitigation evidence (R. XXIX-901-907).

Appellant has failed to establish that he is entitled to relief under Issue III and thus it should be denied accordingly.

# APPELLANT IS NOT ENTITLED TO RELIEF UNDER <u>RING v.</u> ARIZONA, 536 U.S. 584 (2002).

Citing Ring v. Arizona, 536 U.S. 584 (2002), Appellant contends that "[s]ince Arizona's capital scheme is unconstitutional, so is Florida's." App.Br. at 63. Specifically, Globe argues that his "death sentence is invalid because a Florida's jury's role in capital sentencing does not satisfy the Sixth Amendment," App. Br. at 63, his "death sentence is invalid because the proceedings before his jury did not satisfy the Sixth Amendment," App.Br. at 69, his "death sentence is invalid because the elements of the offense necessary to establish capital murder were not charged in the indictment," App.Br. at 70, and that "Bottoson v. Moore and King v. Moore support Mr. Globe's request for relief," App.Br. at 73.

As with Issue III, at no time before the trial court did Globe raise the claims now argued to this Court under Issue IV. "For an issue to be preserved for appeal, however, it 'must be presented to the lower court and the specific legal argument or ground to be argued on appeal must be part of that presentation if it is to be considered preserved." Archer v. State, 613 So.2d 446, 448 (Fla. 1993) (quoting Tillman v. State, 471 So.2d 32, 35 (Fla. 1985)). Appellant fails to acknowledge his procedural default, and thus makes no showing that he could not have raised these

claims before the trial court. Ring extended the requirement that a jury make certain findings, as set forth in Apprendi, to death penalty cases. Apprendi was decided June 26, 2000, well before Globe's September, 2001 trial. Although Apprendi expressly stated its holding did not apply to death penalty cases, id. at 496-497, numerous capital defendants in Florida relied upon Apprendi, albeit unsuccessfully, in seeking invalidation of their sentences prior to issuance of Ring: See, e.g., Looney v. State, 803 So.2d 656, 675 (Fla. 2001) (arguing that Apprendi required an unanimous jury verdict at the penalty phase), cert. denied, 122 S.Ct. 2678 (2002); Hertz v. State, 803 So.2d 629, 648 (Fla. 2001) (same), cert. denied, 122 S.Ct. 2673 (2002); Card v. State, 803 So.2d 613, 628 n.13 (Fla. 2001) (same; advisory role as referenced in jury instructions violated <u>Caldwell</u>), cert. denied, 122 S.Ct. 2673 (2002); <u>Brown v. State</u>, 800 So.2d 223, 224-225 (Fla. 2001) (arguing that life was the maximum sentence and that Apprendi thus applied, and that the aggravators had to be charged in the indictment and found beyond a reasonable doubt by an unanimous jury); Mann v. Moore, 794 So.2d 595, 599 (Fla. 2001) (same; decided before appellant's trial), cert. denied, 122 S.Ct. 2669 (2002); Mills v. Moore, 786 So.2d 532, 537-538 (Fla.) (same), cert. denied, 532 U.S. 1015 (2001). Having failed to raise his Sixth Amendment claims in a timely manner, each is now barred and the Court should deny relief on that basis. See McGregor, 789 So.2d at 977 (Apprendi claim procedurally barred for failure to

raise in trial court); <u>Barnes</u>, 794 So.2d at 591 (<u>Apprendi</u> error not preserved for appellate review).

Even if Globe's claims are reviewable, he ignores the fact that the United States Supreme Court did not, in Ring or otherwise, overrule its extensive precedent upholding the validity of Florida's death penalty statutory scheme. That court has specifically directed lower courts to "'leav[e] to this Court the prerogative of overruling its own decisions." Agostini v. Felton, 521 U.S. 203, 237 (1997) (quoting Rodriguez de Quijas v. Shearson/American Express, Inc., 490 U.S. 477, 484 (1989)). Accordingly, Globes' reliance upon Ring must be considered in respect to its narrow holding -- i.e., that a judge cannot, sitting alone, find the aggravating circumstance necessary for imposition of the death penalty, id. 122 S.Ct. at 2443, and in light of those cases upholding Florida's death penalty.

As discussed, <u>supra</u>, at 28-29, the jury did make the finding of at least one aggravating circumstance. Otherwise it would be nonsensical to talk about the jury's recommendation for death, which was based upon its determination under the instructions that "sufficient aggravating circumstances do exist" and that the mitigating circumstances did not outweigh the aggravating circumstances. Moreover, a finding of an aggravating circumstance had to be beyond a reasonable doubt (R. XXIX-905). Further, neither <u>Ring</u> nor <u>Apprendi</u> require that the jury set forth its findings in writing.

As the United States Supreme Court stated in <u>Jones v. United States</u>, 526 U.S. 227 (1999), "[i]n *Hildwin*, a jury made a sentencing recommendation of death, thus necessarily engaging in the factfinding required for imposition of a higher sentence, that is, the determination that at least one aggravating factor has been proved." <u>Jones</u>, 526 U.S. at 250-251.

To the extent that Appellant claims that his sentence is unconstitutional because the jury's vote need not be unanimous, App.Br. at 67-68, or that the aggravating factors were not charged in the indictment, App.Br. at 73, his reliance upon Ring is misplaced. The unanimity issue was not raised in Ring, and the presentment issue was expressly not addressed therein. <u>Id.</u>, 122 S.Ct. at 2437. This Court has previously rejected each of these contentions. See, e.g., Alvord v. State, 322 So.2d 533, 536 (Fla. 1975) ("It is not necessary in the sentencing phase of a criminal case that the jury's verdict be unanimous where the legislature provides otherwise."), cert. denied, 428 U.S. 923 (1976); Looney, 803 So.2d at 675 (rejecting claim that Apprendi required an unanimous jury verdict at the penalty phase); Banks v. State, \_\_\_ So.2d \_\_\_, 28 Fla. L. Weekly S253, S254 (Fla. Mar. 20, 2003) (rejecting argument that Apprendi, in light of Ring, requires that aggravating circumstances be charged in the indictment). Appellant fails to present any new basis for reconsideration of those decisions.

Globe also argues, citing In re Winship, 397 U.S. 358 (1970) and Mullaney v.

Wilbur, 421 U.S. 684, 698 (1975), that, because the jury was instructed that it had to find whether mitigating circumstances exist that outweigh the aggravating circumstances, that this "violated due process and the right to a jury trial because it relieves the State of its burden to prove beyond a reasonable doubt the element of capital first-degree murder that 'sufficient aggravating circumstances' exist which outweigh mitigating circumstances." App.Br. at 70. Once again, Ring did not address this issue, and neither case cited by Appellant pertains to the penalty phase of a first-degree murder trial. Moreover, this Court has repeatedly rejected that argument. See, e.g., Asay v. Moore, 828 So.2d 985, 993 (Fla. 2002) (citing cases); Sweet v. Moore, 822 So.2d 1269, 1274 (Fla. 2002) (citing cases).

Regarding Globe's <u>Caldwell</u> claim, as discussed <u>supra</u>, at 29-30, it is without merit.

Finally, but most significantly, Globe fails to acknowledge that, due to the existence of his "prior violent felony conviction" aggravating factor, even if Ring applies, the judge was authorized to impose the death penalty. See Bottoson, 833 So.2d at 718-719; 722-723 (J. Shaw, concurring; J. Pariente, concurring). It is undisputed that Globe's judge properly found the existence of the prior conviction factor, and therefore no additional jury findings were required with regard to Appellant's eligibility to receive the death penalty. Almendarez-Torres v. United States,

523 U.S. 224, 243 (1998) (prior conviction properly used by judge alone to enhance defendant's statutorily authorized punishment).

Based upon the foregoing, Issue IV is without merit and should be denied.

# THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS DISCRETION IN WEIGHING THE AGGRAVATING AND MITIGATING FACTORS.

Citing the portion of the trial court's sentencing order stating that without the death penalty there is no deterrence because Globe was currently serving three life sentences, Appellant contends that such language "constituted nonstatutory aggravation and a mandatory death sentence" in violation of the Eighth and Fourteenth Amendment. App.Br. at 78, 79. Though couched in constitutional language, Globe challenges the weight the trial court afforded to the aggravating and mitigating circumstances. Having failed to raise this issue before the trial court, the claim was not preserved for appellate review and is, accordingly, procedurally barred. Cf. Ray v. State, 755 So.2d 604, 611 (Fla. 2000) (defendant failed to raise his challenge to the sentencing order at the time of trial); Johnson v. Singletary, 695 So.2d 263, 266 (Fla. 1996) (allegation of inadequate sentencing order not preserved for review thus precluding appellate consideration).

Even if Appellant's claim is reviewable, he is not entitled to relief. "[T]he weight to be accorded an aggravator is within the discretion of the trial court and will be affirmed if based on competent substantial evidence." Sexton v. State, 775 So.2d 923, 934 (Fla. 2000). The trial court only abuses its discretion "when the judicial action is

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